

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE
GREENEVILLE

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

CHAD SCHAFFNER

)
)
)
)
)

No.

2:10-CR-04
JUDGE GREER

PLEA AGREEMENT

The United States of America, by the United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Tennessee, and defendant Chad Schaffner and the defendant's attorney, Tim S. Moore, have agreed upon the following:

1. The defendant will plead guilty to the following counts in the indictment from the Western District of Kentucky which has been transferred to this court pursuant to Rule 20 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure:

a) Count One charging violations of 18 U.S.C. § 2113(a) and 2113(d), that the defendant, by force, violence and intimidation, did take from the person and presence of another, money belonging to and in the care, custody, control, management and possession of a bank whose deposits were then insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The penalties to which the defendant will be exposed by virtue of his guilty plea are as follows:

The United States will file a notice to seek enhanced penalty under 18 U.S.C. § 3559(c). If the Court determines enhancement is appropriate based on defendant's prior crimes, the penalty on each count will be a mandatory sentence of life imprisonment, a maximum fine of \$250,000, and supervised release for up to 5

years, and a \$100 mandatory assessment. If the Court determines the provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 3559(c) do not apply, the maximum sentence is twenty-five years imprisonment as to each count, up to five years on supervised release, a maximum fine of \$250,000, and a \$100 special assessment.

b) Count Two charging violations of 18 U.S.C. § 924(c)(1)(A)(ii), that the defendant did knowingly use, carry, and brandish a firearm during and in relation to a crime of violence for which he may be prosecuted in a court of the United States, that is, bank robbery, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 2113.

If the Court determines the enhancement under 18 U.S.C. § 3559(c) is appropriate, the sentence will be a mandatory life sentence of imprisonment on each count and each must run consecutively to all other sentences, a maximum fine of \$250,000, and 5 years supervised release, and a \$100 special assessment for each count. If the Court determines the enhancement under 18 U.S.C. § 3559(c) does not apply, the potential penalty for Count Two will be a minimum of twenty-five years imprisonment up to life, a maximum fine of \$250,000, up to five years on supervised release and a \$100 special assessment. Sentences for Count Two must run consecutively to each other and to all other sentences.

2. The parties agree that the appropriate disposition of this case would be the following as to each count:

- a) The Court may impose any lawful term of imprisonment up to the statutory maximum;
- b) The Court may impose any lawful fine up to the statutory maximum;

- c) The Court may impose any lawful term of supervised release up to the statutory maximum;
- d) The Court will impose a special assessment fee as required by law; and
- e) The Court may order forfeiture as applicable and restitution as appropriate.

3. The defendant has read the indictment, discussed the charges and possible defenses with defense counsel, and understands the crimes charged. The defendant is pleading guilty because the defendant is in fact guilty.

4. In support of the defendant's guilty plea, the defendant agrees and stipulates to the following facts. These are the facts submitted for purposes of the defendant's guilty plea. They do not necessarily constitute all of the facts in the case. Other facts may be relevant to sentencing. Both the defendant and the United States retain the right to present additional facts to the Court to ensure a fair and appropriate sentence in this case.

On Thursday, May 2, 2009, at approximately 3:23 p.m., the River City Bank on Bardstown Road, Louisville, Kentucky was robbed by defendant SCHAFFNER. SCHAFFNER entered the bank with a cell phone to his ear as if talking to someone. After brandishing a semi-automatic pistol, demanding United States currency from the tellers and receiving currency which was the property of the bank, SCHAFFNER told the tellers to lie face down on the floor as he left the bank.

This was one of a series of bank robberies by SCHAFFNER. He was identified after other bank robberies as CHAD SCHAFFNER, white male, date of birth 08/31/1972. On Saturday, September 12, 2009, SCHAFFNER was arrested in Missouri. He was interviewed by SA Sam Benson and confessed to robbing the River City Bank and other robberies. SCHAFFNER stated he used a Taurus pistol during the robbery. He said he was not talking on the phone to anyone, just doing it for show for the tellers. SCHAFFNER stated he threw the Taurus pistol in the Ohio River

as he drove to Indiana. The River City Bank was at that time insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

5. The defendant understands that by pleading guilty the defendant is giving up several rights, including:

- a) the right to plead not guilty;
- b) the right to a speedy and public trial by jury;
- c) the right to assistance of counsel at trial;
- d) the right to be presumed innocent and to have the burden of proof placed on the United States to prove the defendant guilty beyond a reasonable doubt;
- e) the right to confront and cross-examine witnesses against the defendant;
- f) the right to testify on one's own behalf, to present evidence in opposition to the charges and to compel the attendance of witnesses; and
- g) the right not to testify and to have that choice not used against the defendant.

6. The defendant further agrees to cooperate completely and truthfully with any and all law enforcement agents and personnel of the United States Attorney's Office. This cooperation includes, but is not limited to, meeting with and being interviewed by such law enforcement agents or personnel of the United States Attorney's Office whenever requested. The defendant further agrees not to protect anyone who was truly involved and not to falsely implicate anyone who was not truly involved in the commission of criminal offenses. The defendant further agrees to testify completely and truthfully before a federal grand jury, at any trial, or at any other proceeding if called upon by the United States to do so. Upon request by the United States, the defendant must furnish all documents, objects and other evidence in the defendant's possession, custody or control that are relevant to the United State's inquiries. The defendant and defense counsel also knowingly,

voluntarily, and intentionally waive the defendant's right (where applicable) to have defense counsel present during the course of cooperation, including questioning or court appearances.

7. To ensure the defendant's truthful cooperation, the United States agrees, except as provided below, not to use any self-incriminating information provided by the defendant pursuant to this written plea agreement against the defendant. However, nothing in this plea agreement shall be applied to restrict the use of any information, (1) known to the United States prior to entering into this written plea agreement; (2) obtained from any other source; or (3) concerning the defendant's prior criminal record. Should any of the following occur (1) the defendant provides false or materially misleading information during the course of the defendant's cooperation; (2) the defendant later moves to withdraw the defendant's guilty plea; or (3) the defendant breaches any of the terms of this plea agreement, then the United States may make use of any information provided by the defendant for any purpose in any subsequent proceeding, including grand jury, trial and sentencing phases of this case or in any other prosecutions or proceedings against the defendant.

8. At the time of sentencing, the United States may bring to the Court's attention the nature, extent, and value of the defendant's cooperation so that it may be considered in determining a fair and appropriate sentence under the facts of the case.

9. Given the defendant's agreement to plead guilty, the United States will not oppose a two-level reduction for acceptance of responsibility under the provisions of Section 3E1.1(a) of the Sentencing Guidelines. Further, if the defendant's offense level is 16 or greater, the United States agrees to move, at or before the time of sentencing, that the Court decrease the offense level by one additional level pursuant to Section 3E1.1(b) of the Sentencing Guidelines. Should the defendant engage in any conduct or make statements that are inconsistent with accepting responsibility for the defendant's offenses, including violations of conditions of release or the

commission of additional offenses prior to sentencing, the United States will be free not to make such motion or to withdraw such motion if already made, and will be free to recommend to the Court that the defendant not receive any offense level reduction for acceptance of responsibility under Section 3E1.1 of the Sentencing Guidelines.

10. The defendant agrees to pay the special assessment in this case prior to sentencing.

11. No promises have been made by any representative of the United States to the defendant as to what the sentence will be in this case. Any estimates or predictions made to the defendant by defense counsel or any other person regarding the potential sentence in this case are not binding on the Court. The defendant understands that the sentence in this case will be determined by the Court after it receives the pre-sentence report from the United States Probation Office and any information presented by the parties. The defendant acknowledges that the sentencing determination will be based upon the entire scope of the defendant's criminal conduct, the defendant's criminal history, and pursuant to other factors and guidelines as set forth in the Sentencing Guidelines and the factors set forth in 18 U.S.C. § 3553.

12. The defendant agrees to pay any fine and/or restitution imposed by the Court to the Clerk of Court. The defendant also agrees that the full fine and/or restitution amount shall be considered due and payable immediately. If the defendant cannot pay the full amount immediately and is placed in custody or under the supervision of the Probation Office at any time, the defendant agrees that the Bureau of Prisons and the Probation Office will have the authority to establish payment schedules to ensure payment of the fine and/or restitution. The defendant further agrees to cooperate fully in efforts to collect the fine and/or restitution obligation by set-off of program payments, execution on non-exempt property, and any other means the United States deems

appropriate. Finally, the defendant and counsel agree that the defendant may be contacted regarding the collection of any fine and/or restitution without notifying counsel and outside the presence of counsel.

13. (a) In consideration of the concessions made by the United States in this agreement and as a further demonstration of the defendant's acceptance of responsibility for the offenses committed, the defendant agrees not to file a direct appeal of the defendant's convictions or sentence except the defendant retains the right to appeal a sentence imposed above the sentencing guideline range as determined by the district court.

(b) In addition, the defendant knowingly and voluntarily waives the right to file any motions or pleadings pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255 or to collaterally attack the defendant's convictions and/or resulting sentence. The parties agree that the defendant retains the right to raise, by way of collateral review under § 2255, claims of ineffective assistance of counsel or prosecutorial misconduct not known to the defendant by the time of the entry of judgment.

14. The defendant also expressly agrees that the defendant's photograph, image and/or criminal history can be publicly disclosed or displayed to further the education and deterrence goals of Project Safe Neighborhoods.

15. This agreement becomes effective once it is signed by the parties. If the United States violates the terms of this agreement, the defendant will have the right to withdraw from this agreement. If the defendant violates the terms of this agreement, moves to withdraw the defendant's guilty plea, or violates any court order, or any local, state or federal law pending the resolution of this case, then the United States will have the right to void any or all parts of the agreement and may also enforce whatever parts of the agreement it chooses. In addition, the United States may prosecute the defendant

for any and all federal crimes that the defendant committed related to this case, including any charges that were dismissed and any other charges which the United States agreed not to pursue. The defendant expressly waives any statute of limitations defense and any constitutional or statutory speedy trial defense to such a prosecution. The defendant also understands that a violation of this plea agreement by the defendant does not entitle the defendant to withdraw the defendant's guilty plea in this case.

16. This plea agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement and understanding between the parties concerning the defendant's guilty plea to the above-referenced charges, and there are no other agreements, promises, undertakings, or understandings between the defendant and the United States. The parties understand and agree that the terms of this plea agreement can be modified only in writing signed by all of the parties and that any and all other promises, representations, and statements whether made before, contemporaneous with, or after this agreement, are null and void.

JAMES R. DEDRICK
United States Attorney

3-15-10
Date

By: Robert M. Reeves
ROBERT M. REEVES
Assistant United States Attorney

X 3-15-10
Date

X Chad Schaffner
CHAD SCHAFFNER
Defendant

X 3-15-10
Date

Tim S. Moore
TIM S. MOORE
Attorney for Defendant